
 
 
 

Town of Montville Zoning Board of Appeals 
Regular Meeting Minutes of Wednesday, June 5, 2013 

Town Hall – Town Council Chambers 
 
 

1. Call to Order 
 

Chairman MacNeil opened the regular meeting of the Zoning Board of Appeals at 7:00 p.m. 
 
2. Roll Call 
 
Present were Board Members Adams, Bassetti, alternate Freeman, Lakowsky, McNally and 
MacNeil.  Board Member/alternate Wittkofske was absent.  Also present was Assistant Town 
Planner Tom Sanders. 
 
Board Member Freeman was assigned full votes rights in place of Board Member Lakowsky who 
arrived at 7:06 p.m. 
 
3. New Business – None 
 
4. Public Hearings 
 
a) Steven D. Morton/Jeffrey Morton 213-ZBA-1:  A request for a variance of Section 6.2.9 

Accessory Buildings and Uses and Section 1.3 Definitions-Accessory, to build an accessory 
storage building on a lot without a principal structure on the property located at 112 Pires 
Drive, Montville, CT.   As shown on Assessor’s Map 39 Lot 6. 

 
Chairman MacNeil asked if proper mailings were sent out.  Asst. Planner Sanders reported that 
correspondence was mailed to the applicants and notices of receipt are on file.  He then stated that 
the applicant J. Morton, present this evening, and his brother S. Morton have owned the 43-acre 
property for 30 years and it has been used for logging operations.  A few years ago through the 
auspices of the DEP, the owners began to farm their acreage growing vegetables.  Asst. Planner 
Sanders said that there is equipment located at the sight and added that there has been some 
damage from neighborhood kids.  The owners request for a zoning variance to build an accessory 
storage building is promoted. 
 
Chairman MacNeil inquired about the map provided by the Asst. Planner asking if the property is 
under agricultural use, whether it is forested or non-forested, and if logging is still in use at the 
property. 
 
Chairman MacNeil then asked if there was anyone present who wanted to speak in favor of or in 
opposition to the proposed variance—the pronouncements were asked three times for each. 
 
The question; “What is the hardship?” was raised by Chairman MacNeil given the current, prior, 
and preexisting use of the property.  He also asked if the zoning regulations should be modified to 
address the issue.  Board Member Adams then asked whether vandalism would be considered a 
hardship.  Asst. Planner Sanders commented that one owner resides in Griswold, the other in New 
York, and it might be a consideration in order for them to continue agricultural and forestry use of 
their property. 
 



Town of Montville Zoning Board of Appeals 
Regular Meeting Minutes of June 5, 2013 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 

Co-applicant J. Morton stated he has owned the property with his brother since 1991 with its 
forestry use, that would conclude this week; but, farmed vegetables, trees, and seedlings will 
continue.  J. Morton also talked about their equipment—two (2) tractors, rotor-tillers, log splitter 
and other tools--including fertilizer at the sight that requires a proper storage place.  He also 
addressed the problem with vandalism. 
 
Board Member Adams asked for the dimensions of the proposed accessory structure that C. 
Morton described as a 2-bay structure, 30-36 feet and 20-24 feet deep. 
 
After deeming that there were no further comments, a motion was made by Chairman MacNeil; 
seconded by Board Member Bassetti to close the public hearing at 7:31 p.m.; discussion, none, 
voice vote 5-0; all in favor; motion carried. 

 
5. Old Business 
 
Steven D. Morton/Jeffrey Morton 213-ZBA-1:  A request for a variance of Section 6.2.9 
Accessory Buildings and Uses and Section 1.3 Definitions-Accessory, to build an accessory 
storage building on a lot without a principal structure on the property located at 112 Pires Drive, 
Montville, CT.  As shown on Assessor’s Map 39 Lot 6. 
 
The Board considered the proposed variance.  Board Member Bassetti stated the Board must be 
careful in its discussion of 213-ABA-1.  He conceded that there may/should be a zoning 
regulation to cover this use.  Chairman MacNeil stated his concern about the accessory use 
without a regulation in place for an applicant that has a lot structure without a primary structure.  
He said that the current matter before the Board can set a precedent.  He further commented that 
the ZBA does not make regulations, it breaks them, and this issue is not something that the ZBA 
should support.  Chairman MacNeil also commented that issuance of the variance would raise 
zoning concerns such as lack of sanitation, etc.  He concluded that an alternate storage method 
could be found to protect the applicants’ equipment; although, he was not offering an opinion on 
how to store the equipment.  Board member concurred with Chairman MacNeil on the storage 
issue. 
 
Asst. Planner Sanders stated he was less concerned with the structure than putting in box storage 
since a structure can be controlled through taxation.  Board member Freeman asked if a storage 
device is realistic and Chairman MacNeil reiterated that a structure cannot be built because the 
matter is not addressed in the zoning regulations.  Board members then debated circumstances 
such as utilities, water, septic, the building size, and the regulation regarding farming in the 
Town.  Board member Lakowsky stated that the farming requirement is five (5) acres.  Per 
Chairman MacNeil, a special exemption must be approved by the state for farming tax relief. 
 
In further discussion, Chairman MacNeil asked if there were any examples of a similar variance 
application coming before the ZBA.    Asst. Planner Sanders recounted an example whereby 
someone wanted to give three (3) acres for a home to add to a 30-acre separate parcel that housed 
a barn and cattle.  He said in that instance the two properties had to be joined.  When asked by 
Chairman MacNeil about the principal structure, Asst. Planner Sanders said the structure would 
need to be a single-family dwelling.  He added that the regulation dates back to the 1970’s when 
developers used to come to Montville to buy farming land emphasizing that farming is allowed in 
the Town per the zoning regulations.  He concluded that the zoning regulations will be reassessed 
in 1-2 years and the issue may be addressed then. 



Town of Montville Zoning Board of Appeals 
Regular Meeting Minutes of June 5, 2013 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 

Chairman MacNeil concluded the discussion by saying that it is not the ZBA’s intent to force-
feed the Planning & Zoning department nor does he want the ZBA to confirm the variance 
request represented this evening and box in P&Z.  Asst. Planner Sanders stated that there have 
been not complaints about the applicants’ operation during his tenure. 
 
Motion made by Chairman MacNeil; seconded by Board Member Adams, to deny a request by 
Steven D. Morton/Jeffrey Morton 213-ZBA-1 for a variance of Section 6.2.9 Accessory 
Buildings and Uses and Section 1.3 Definitions-Accessory, to build an accessory storage building 
on a lot without a principal structure on the property located at 112 Pires Drive, Montville, CT, as 
shown on Assessor’s Map 39 Lot 6.  The applicants have demonstrated no hardship that 
convinces the ZBA to approve their request.  Discussion, none; Roll Call vote, Board members 
Adams, MacNeil, Freeman, Bassetti, McNally in favor, 5-0; motion carried. 

 
6. Minutes 
 

a) Acceptance of the minutes from the Regular meeting of December 5, 2012. 
 
Motion made by Board Member Adams; seconded by Board Member Freeman  to accept the 
minutes of December 5, 2012, as written; discussion, none; voice vote, 5-0; all in favor, motion 
carried. 
 
7. Communications – None 

 
8. Other Business and Applications to come before the Zoning Board of Appeals. 
 
None 
 
9. Adjourn 
 
Motion made by Board Member Adams; seconded by Chairman MacNeil, to adjourn the meeting 
at 7:52 p.m.; discussion, none; voice vote, 5-0, all in favor, motion carried. 
 
Respectfully Submitted by: 
 
 
 
Gloria J. Gathers 
Recording Secretary, Town of Montville 


